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2024 Annual Report
This annual report provides an overview of Bowls 

Queensland’s activities, achievements and financial 

performance for the 2024 calendar year. Bowls Queensland’s 

performance is reported within the framework of the 2023-

2025 Strategic Plan.

This report contains information beyond Bowls Queensland’s 

reporting requirements to provide readily accessible reference 

of the State body’s work on matters that are of interest to the 

bowling community.

The Board would like to thank those committees who have 

contributed to the 2024 Annual Report.
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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF

BOWLS QUEENSLAND LIMITED 
A.C.N. 009 705 515

The twenty-second Annual General Meeting of Bowls 
Queensland Limited will be conducted at Bowls 
Queensland Headquarters, 72 Pickering Street, Enoggera 
on Wednesday 19th March, 2025 following the Council 
meeting commencing at 9.15 am.

Business

1.	 Confirmation of Minutes of last Annual General Meeting

2.	 Business arising there from

3.	 The Annual Report for the Year

4.	 Consideration of the audited Statement of Accounts and Balance Sheet for the year

5.	 Declaration of election Board Directors 

6.	 Introduction of new Officers 

Brett Wilkie 
CEO
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Her Excellency the Honourable  
Dr Jeannette Young AC PSM,  
Governor of Queensland

Committee & 
administration personnel
Bowls Australia Delegate: 
Brian Marshall

Coaching Committee
Alan Thorp (Co-ordinator); Dennis O’Toole; 
Eric Tomsene; Mal Mackney; Jacqui 
Hineman; David Hatfield

Umpire Committee
John Kirkpatrick (Co-ordinator); Joan 
Brotherton OAM; Jessie Cannon; Barry 
Ashby; Chris Berry; Peter Landers 

Match Committee
Jim See (Co-ordinator); Linda Morish; Ron 
Sommerville; John DeErneste; Christine 
Russell; Barry Cooke; Linda Mitchell

Selection Committee
Christina Pavlov (Co-ordinator); Gary 
Costigan, Ron Mitchell; Wendy Wilson; Kurt 
Brown

Audit & Risk Committee
Graham Tanis (Co-ordinator); Joan 
Brotherton, OAM

Junior Committee
Des Kemp (Co-ordinator); Richard Brain; 
Jacqui Hineman; Christopher Scott; Kane 
Nelson; Chris Falkner; Cody Gerick

Administration
Brett Wilkie (CEO); Stu Taylor; Roxanne 
Bell; Cath Crowe; Bill Cornehls (August-
December)

Auditor
Forvis Mazars

Bank
Westpac Banking Corporation

Solicitor
Mullins Lawyers 

Bowls Queensland Board

Support
Bowls Queensland 
is grateful to its 
committees and 
administrators for their 
help this year.

Wendy Wilson (Vice-President) Graham Lewis (Director of Finance) Gary Costigan (Director)

Joan Brotherton, OAM (Director) Alan Thorp (Director) Graham Tanis (Director)

Brian Marshall (President)
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Bowls Queensland (BQ) had major changes to the 
composition of the Board of Directors during 2024. 

President’s Report

Wendy Wilson was appointed as a director in February 
to fill the casual vacancy following the sad passing of 
former director, Martin Corr. At the AGM in March, four 
directors were up for election, all four were opposed 
and all of the new candidates were elected: Brian 
Marshall (Vice President), Graham Lewis (Director of 
Finance), Alan Thorp (Director) and Joan Brotherton 
OAM (Director). 

BQ President Peter Williamson tendered his resignation 
at the April board meeting and then in a series of 
meetings in May, the BQ Board finalised the following 
appointments: Brian Marshall (President), Wendy Wilson 
(Vice President) and Graham Tanis was appointed to fill 
the casual vacancy. 

Welcome to all the new members of the BQ Board and 
to the only remaining board member from the previous 
year, Gary Costigan. Thank you for your time and effort 
during the remainder of the year in achieving many 
positive results for the sport. 

Thank you to former board members: Peter Williamson 
(President), Kerry Green (Vice President), Greg Flynn 
(Director of Finance), Colleen Ryan (Director) and 
Carmel Gibb (Director) for their time devoted to filling 
these roles over many years. 

With nearly a total new board came new ideas. One of 
the first to be implemented was a move to the whole 
of sport IT System BowlsLink. This system was used by 
Bowls Australia (BA) and all States and Territories other 
than BQ. Graham Lewis, BA and the BQ staff have done 
a wonderful job in rolling out this new system and are 
continuing to assist with this transition. 

We agreed to review the BQ Constitution, By-laws, 
policies, operations, zones and events. A consultant 
was appointed to help assist with the Constitution and 
By-laws and recommendations will be presented to an 
Extraordinary Meeting of BQ. 

After costing an extremely large amount of money 
over many years, it was agreed to stop the printing 
and postage of the Queensland Bowler Magazine, 

this will still be produced and 
distributed online only. 

With the change to BowlsLink, 
and due to the cost and large 
amount of staff time involved, it 
was decided to stop producing 
the BQ Registered Member 
Cards. 

A Zone Review was undertaken with no outcome 
resolved at this stage; this is an ongoing discussion 
regarding what will be best for the future. We will 
continue to consult with districts, clubs and key people 
in this area. 

In regard to events, it was decided that due to the lack 
of support from many districts and clubs across the 
State, that the State 8 A-Side event be discontinued. 
Following a recommendation from the BQ Match 
Committee, the BQ Board endorsed that the State 
District Mixed Pairs event will now start at club level in 
2025 with Club Mixed Pairs Champions progressing to 
a district play off as per Champion of Club Champion 
Singles, Pairs and Fours.

Open bowls and offerings for those who work or go 
to school during business hours have been an area we 
have been encouraging districts and clubs to consider 
when planning pennant and championships that 
progress onto higher level. 

Many districts and clubs have been amalgamated in 
2024 or are in the process. If you are not amalgamated 
already, I encourage you to look at how it has been 
done by others, learn from their experiences and 
consider this for the future. 

Communication is high on the agenda of the new BQ 
Board, online meetings were introduced during 2024 
for district presidents and secretaries to attend and 
have open discussion with the BQ Board and each 
other. These have proved valuable for all involved. 
We have also started running forums throughout the 
State to give districts and clubs the opportunity to 
attend and be updated by BQ and raise any ideas, 
issues or concerns. These too have proved to be 
popular. 	

I must thank all the BQ Committees for the work they 
have done in their respective areas, also to the staff at 
BQ for the hard work and dedication to the sport.

Thank you to all district and club administrators who 
devote their time to organising and promoting our 
great game of bowls, along with all the volunteers at 
clubs for their contribution at grass roots. We all need to 
work together to ensure a healthy future of the sport. 

Brian Marshall 
President 
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CEO’s Report
The Bowls Queensland (BQ) 2023 – 2025 Strategic Plan is nearing the 
end of its term. BQ has assisted Bowls Australia in the review of their 
plan and are now waiting for their document to be finalised. BQ will 
then work on a new plan for our future direction.

As mentioned in President Brian’s report, there were 
major changes to the Board in 2024. The new Board 
were straight onto the front foot in reviewing how 
we operate, polices, constitution and events etc. I am 
excited to be a part of this new direction for our sport.

Thank you to Presidents Peter Williamson and Brian 
Marshall and all the Board of BQ for their commitment, 
leadership and vision. Thank you to all the hard-working 
members of BQ committees: Match, Umpires, Coaching, 
Selection and Audit & Risk; BQ could not operate 
without their tireless efforts. Also thank you to those 
who nominated for these committees and Board but 
were unsuccessful on this occasion.

BQ have introduced a new Junior Committee who met 
for the first time in October. This Committee will be 
looking at ideas to help promote and nurture junior 
bowling.

Thank you to our BQ Staff: Stuart Taylor – Finance 
Manager & Membership; Roxanne Bell – Operations 
Coordinator/Events; Cath Crowe – Operations 
Administrator and Micheal Sorrensen – Events & 
Competition Manager for their ongoing hard work 
and dedication. Bill Cornehls was appointed as Events, 
Competition & High-Performance Manager during 
the year before resigning due to family reasons. 
Roxanne is transitioning into retirement by reducing 
her days worked late in the year before using up all her 
accumulated leave over 24 years. Roxanne has played 
an integral part of BQ since its inception and also with 
the RQBA prior to that. Roxanne will notch up 25 years 
of working in both of these organisations in March 2025 
prior to her retirement scheduled for soon after. 

The BQ AGM and Council Meetings held in March and 
September were productive meetings with many great 
topics discussed. Thank you to all delegates who make 
the journey to these meetings.

Thank you to Cornerstone Communications Jo Grey and 
Dee Ayre for producing a quality QLD Bowler magazine.

Our Bowls Australia Club Support Managers (CSMs) 
were busy travelling our State throughout the year, 
thank you to David Barnes in Central QLD, Micheal 
Sorrensen in Southeast QLD (who resigned in August), 
his replacement Troy Corba (who started in December) 
and also NT’s Paul Jackson who assisted clubs in North 
QLD throughout the year.

BowlsLink has been a great addition with much staff 
time reduced with efficiencies created. We nearly have 
all clubs signed up with club administrator access 
for BowlsLink. We encourage more clubs to contact 
Stuart in the office to get online access to this valuable 
resource. Many clubs and districts are using this system 
for their competitions with great feedback so far.

BQ received advice from IP Australia that our new trade 
mark logo was officially approved and registered. Due 
to this advice, the Board agreed to start transitioning 
over to this new logo. Initially, digital assets such as 
letterheads, email tags, website, live streaming and 
social media etc will bear the new logo. Other physical 
assets like uniforms and promotional material will 
change in the future as per the need to replace.

Thank you to the QLD State Government for continuing 
their support of bowls in QLD through their Active 
Industry Base Funding, Active Industry Project Funding, 
women/girls in sport funding and grants for clubs and 
districts. 

Thank you to our Commercial Partners who have 
supported Bowls in QLD for many years: Mullins 
Lawyers, BCIB, Aceit, J Carroll Club Promotions and 
BioScapes Group.

Peter Williamson, Brian Marshall and I attended State 
Consultative Body Meetings involving representatives 
from Bowls Australia and all State / Territories who come 
together to discuss issues from across the Nation.

Well done to all winners and participants in BQ’s 
intrastate events in 2024. Thank you and well done to 
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all host clubs and their volunteers for their valuable 
assistance in hosting/running these events, trials or 
camps: Club Musgrave, Broadbeach, Club Helensvale, 
Paradise Point, Club Tweed, Bargara, Capalaba Sports, 
Club Pine Rivers, Souths Suburban Mackay, Burnett, 
Across the Waves, Chermside, Northern Suburbs, 
Enoggera, Hamilton, Southport, Club Robina, Benowa, 
Mermaid Beach and Mudgeeraba.

Thank you to event sponsors: Experience Gold Coast, 
Tweed Heads Regional Council, Mackay Regional 
Council, Bundaberg Regional Council, Brisbane City 
Council, Club Musgrave, Australian Secure Capital Fund, 
J Carroll Club Promotions, BioScapes Group, Containers 
for Change, Nic Fisher/Pure Real Estate, Identified 
Services, Sandhills Sports Club, Bargara Bowls Club, Club 
Pine Rivers, Club Tweed, Souths Suburban Bowls Club, 
Souths Leagues Club, While Lace Motel, Arcon Metals 
Recycling, Ross Gray Motor City, Wholelife Pharmacy & 
Healthfoods.

Each day of our events (52 days) were live streamed in 
2024 and will be again in 2025 on BQ’s Website, YouTube 
and Facebook page. Thank you to the Bowls Gold 
Coast Tweed Media team: Robbie Allan, Brian Marshall 
and guest commentators for providing this quality 
production.

An QLD Under 18 camp and trials for our various 
QLD teams took place which was a great opportunity 
for all involved. BQ reintroduced Squads for QLD 
representative teams in Open, Under 25, 40-59 and Over 
60 categories, well done to all selected in these Squads. 
Congratulations to all bowlers who were selected to 
represent Queensland in U18, U25, 40-59, O60, open 
and disability events, also to those who were successful 
in winning medals or shields while representing. 
This was the inaugural year for an Under 18 Tri Series 
involving NSW and Victoria. The Nationals were held at 
Club Tweed and Broadbeach (both were great hosts) 
with all our teams and players performing well.  Thank 
you to our team managers/coaches. Thank you to ACEIT 
for producing quality uniforms for our representative 
players and officials. 

Well done to our Australian representatives and squad 
members for amazing performances in 2024. 

BQ partnered up with QLD Representative School 
Sport to enter a team in the School Sport Australia 
Championships for the first time.

The North versus South competition was held in Mackay 
for the second time and was well received, well done to 
all players involved in this event.

The State Multi Disability Championships went well 
bringing together the four disability groups. The 
comradeship of these championships is amazing, 
well done to all involved in participating and to those 
who took home medals. The Secondary Schools Cup 
continues to grow and culminated in another great 
final’s series at Club Pine Rivers. Thank you to our CSMs 
for assisting with this event. 

Well done to the clubs and their volunteers who held a 
day during our “Try Bowls” Month in October or other 
months. BQ promoted the “Try Bowls” month on social 
media throughout October, thank you to those who 
shared these posts.

Unfortunately, we had more clubs affected by weather 
events in 2024, BQ offered assistance through their 
Disaster Relief Fund and liaised with clubs/Government 
regarding assistance available. Clubs affected included 
Stratford, Cooktown, Mareeba, Tully and Paradise Point.

Well done to all volunteers in their roles at clubs 
and districts administering the sport throughout 
Queensland and Northern NSW.

The future of our sport requires the whole bowling 
community to play a part in promoting our game to 
family/friends/local community and volunteering their 
time where possible to either spread the word or assist 
in your local club and/or district.

I am enjoying working with our current board with 
new ideas and direction, I look forward to another busy 
and productive year in the role of CEO working with 
all stakeholders to administer our sport. Let’s all work 
together to promote and nurture this 
great game of ours.

Brett Wilkie 
CEO
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Official Visits
Host Club	 Event

Club Pine Rivers John O’Brien 100th birthday celebration

Belmont Services Keith Gilchrist 100th birthday celebration 

United Ladies 75th Anniversary celebration 

Burgowan Men’s 100th Centenary 

Kandanga Country Club 75th Anniversary

The Albert Ladies 75th Anniversary

Wynnum 100th Anniversary

Bribie Island Joan Dunn 100th birthday celebration

Lowood & District Mem 75th Anniversary

Tewantin Noosa 75th Anniversary

Official Visits & Awards 2024

Wynnum members celebrating the club’s 100th anniversary

Awards
Members Recognition Awards

25 Year Meritorious: Colleen Ryan, Paradise Point

Joan Chapman, St Helens

Howard Loweke, Beaudesert

Paul Newton, Beaudesert

100 Year Medallions: Keith Gilchrist – Belmont Services

John O’Brien – Club Pine Rivers

Raymond Gee OAM – Mackay Northern Beaches

Joan Dunn – Bribie Island

The Albert Ladies cutting the 75th anniversary cake L-R Maureen 
Dodt, Lyn Rackemann, Doris Watt and Judy Seaniger

Keith Gilchrist (Belmont Services) receiving his 100 Year Medallion

Burgowan members celebrating the club’s 100th anniversary

Tewantin Noosa members celebrating the club’s 75th anniversary
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What could we do at your Club?

shadex.com.au
(07) 5574 5911

5 YEAR  
warranty  
on shades

shadex.com.au
(07) 5574 5911

5 YEAR  
warranty  
on shades

Introducing our new Victor series of Introducing our new Victor series of 
retractable shades!retractable shades!

As seen at Cabravale Diggers and Waverley Greens.As seen at Cabravale Diggers and Waverley Greens.

The Best in Bowls Club Shades, Seats & Scoreboards!

shadex.com.au 
(07) 5574 5911

Victor retractable shades from ShadexVictor retractable shades from Shadex

Since 1989

https://shadex.com.au/
https://shadex.com.au/
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As forecast at the September Council meeting, a deficit has 
been reported. This was higher than forecast due largely in 
part to a change in reporting procedures as directed by the 
auditors.

Total revenue increased 4.1%. Affiliation fee income represents 67.2% of 
total income. 

Director of Finance Report 

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024

Historically, member numbers have been decreasing 
year on year, however the introduction of BowlsLink has 
revealed a level of non-disclosure of members which 
would suggest that the decline is not as drastic as once 
thought.

The current affiliation fee model would appear to not 
meet the needs of Bowls Queensland or its members 
and is being reviewed by the BQ Board in conjunction 
with Bowls Australia. It is envisaged that the Board will 
have more details mid-2025.

Interest rates remained high, reflecting favourable 
returns on term deposits. Ongoing expense of the 
Bowler Magazine, bad debts incurred in 2023 and 
written off in 2024, Coorparoo Bowls Club and 
additional un-budgeted expenses relating to the 
Nationals all impacted negatively on the bottom line.

The introduction of BowlsLink was also over and above 
what was budgeted for. The investment in BowlsLink 
was partially offset by savings of ongoing maintenance 
and development of the now decommissioned BQ 
database.

Upon taking office the BQ Board embarked on a review 
of the business which again was an un-budgeted item, 
however one that the Board believed was extremely 
important and necessary. 

Initially the review focused on short-term objectives, 
however, it has become apparent that a more in-depth 
analysis will be required.

BQ’s Balance Sheet is very solid, and we are well placed 
to fulfill all our bowling programs as well as undertake 
the business review and any findings that may come out 
of it.

My predecessor Mr. Greg Flynn is to be congratulated 
for his tireless efforts over many years and for our 
current financial position.

I thank our Finance Manager, Stu Taylor, for his 
unwavering dedication and support he has provided 
for myself and the new Board. His commitment to the 
BowlsLink Membership rollout has been outstanding.

Thanks also to CEO Brett Wilkie and my fellow board 
members for their efforts and contributions.

Finally, a very big thank you to all the club officials 
and BowlsLink Administrators. Your contribution has 
ensured that the BowlsLink Membership rollout was 
successful and on time.

Graham Lewis
Director of Finance



Bowls Queensland Limited 

31 December 2024

Director’s Report
Bowls Queensland Limited 

Directors' Report 
31 December 2024 

The directors present their report, together with the financial statements of the Company, for the financial year ended 
31 December 2024. 

1. General information 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year was the encouragement, conduct, control and 
management of the sport of bowls in Queensland. 

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

Short term objectives 

The Company's short term objectives are to: 

• Provide good management and governance of the sport of bowls. 

• Encourage the growth in membership and participation in the sport of bowls in Queensland. 

Long term objectives 

The Company's long term objectives are to: 

• To build a sustainable future for the bowls community. 

• To widen the appeal of the sport of bowls and increase the awareness of the benefits of being "The Sport for 
Life". 

• To develop plans and strategies to assist the commercial viability of affiliated bowls clubs in Queensland and 
their associated districts. 

Strategy for achieving the objectives 

To achieve these objectives, the Company has adopted the following strategic plan to assist the Company reach its 
long and short term objectives: 

• The Company adopts six pronged approach: involving specific strategies that encourage participation, the 
maintenance of high performance standards, the organisation of community and competition events, 
commercial development through marketing, offering strong leadership & governance and encouraging open 
transparent communication. The Company also establishes and fosters working relationships with a range of 
community districts, bowls clubs and members. By actively encouraging involvement in the entities activities, 
the Company will be able to achieve this: 

Short-term objectives of providing good governance, management and enticing new memberships; and 

Long-term objectives of building a sustainable future for the sport of bowls and its clubs in Queensland. 
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

31 December 2024

Director’s Report

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024

Bowls Queensland Limited 

Directors' Report 
31 December 2024 

1. General information 

Directors 

Information on directors 

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are: 

Brian Marshall 

Wendy Wilson 

Graham Lewis 

Gary Costigan 

Joan Brotherton (OAM) 

Alan Thorp 

Graham Tanis 

Peter Williamson 

Kerry Green 

Greg Flynn 

Colleen Ryan 

Carmel Gibb 

Vice President (elected 20 March 2024) 
President (appointed 9 May 2024) 

Board Director (appointed 12 Februay 2024) 
Vice President (appointed 9 May 2024) 

Board Director (elected 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (elected 22 March 2023) 

Board Director (elected 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (elected 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (appointed 9 May 2024) 

President (ceased 23 April 2024) 

Vice President (ceased 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (ceased 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (ceased 20 March 2024) 

Board Director (ceased 20 March 2024) 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 

Members' guarantee 

Bowls Queensland Limited is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the 
company, the amount capable of being called up from each member and any person or association who ceased to be 
a member in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to $1 subject to the provisions of the company's constitution. 

At 31 December 2024 the collective liability of members was $24,365 (2023: $ 26,035). 



Bowls Queensland Limited 

31 December 2024

Director’s Report

Meetings of directors

Page 13

Financials



Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 14

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive IncomeBowls Queensland Limited 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

2024 2023 
Note $ $ 

Revenue 2 1,910,257 1,833,900 
Other income 2 57,696 78,320 
Cost of sales (15,752) (18,703) 
Employee benefits expense (582,205) (497,566) 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense (36,304) (37,993) 
Coorparoo Bowls Club expenses (106,470) (107,821) 
Queensland Bowler expenses (278,050) (253,799) 
Board and council expenses (127,721) (125,116) 
State development (116,000) (133,091) 
Competition expenses (480,982) (435,771) 
Bad debts written off (14,800) 
Other expenses (337,275) (305,435) 
Finance costs (445) (581)

Profit/(loss) before income tax (128,051) (3,656)
Income tax expense 

Profit/(loss) for the year {128,051} {3,656} 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Statement of Financial Position
Bowls Queensland Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
As At 31 December 2024 

2024 2023 
Note $ $ 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,243,890 3,444,032 
Trade and other receivables 5 70,614 74,958 
Inventories 6 6,317 15,401 
Other assets 7 63,266 54,665 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,384,087 3,589,056 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 9 4,740,263 4,773,832 
Right-of-use assets 8 7,061 9,795 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4z747,324 4,783,627 
TOTAL ASSETS 8,131,411 8,372,683 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 10 544,093 692,995 
Employee benefits 12 142,367 108,971 
Contract Liabilities 11 150,000 145,000 
Lease Liabilities 8 2,854 2,715 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 839,314 949,681 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Lease Liabilities 8 4,558 7,412 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,558 7,412 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 843,872 957,093 
NET ASSETS 7,287,539 7,415,590 

EQUITY 
Reserves 1,969,270 1,969,270 
Retained earnings 5,318,269 5,446,320 
TOTAL EQUITY 7,287,539 7,415,590 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Statement of Changes in Equity
Bowls Queensland Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

2024 

Balance at 1 January 2024 
Profit for the year 

Balance at 31 December 2024 

2023 

Balance at 1 January 2023 
Profit for the year 
Revaluation increment 

Balance at 31 December 2023 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
5,446,320 
(128,051) 

5,318,269 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
5,449,976 

(3,656) 

5,446,320 

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve 
$ 

1,969,270 

1,969,270 

Asset 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
$ 

1,287,110 

682,160 

1,969,270 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

Total 
$ 

7,415,590 
(128,051) 

7,287,539 

Total 
$ 

6,737,086 
(3,656) 

682,160 

7,415,590 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Statement of Cash Flows
Bowls Queensland Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

2024 2023 
$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts from customers 1,998,657 1,745,759 
Payments to suppliers and 
employees (2,346,524) (1,790,956) 
Interest received 150,885 131,640 
Net cash provided by/(used in) 
operating activities (196,982) 86,443 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Payment of lease liabilities (3,160) (4,252) 
Net cash provided by/(used in) 
financing activities (3,160) (4,252) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents held (200,142) 82,191 
Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 3,444,032 3,361,841 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
financial year 4 3!243!890 3,444,032 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial StatementsBowls Queensland Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

The general purpose financial report covers Bowls Queensland Limited ('the Company"). Bowls Queensland Limited is a 
non-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

1 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

a Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
the Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001. 

The Company has adopted AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements - Simplified Disclosures for For-
Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities in the current year. . 

b Income Tax 

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

c Revenue and other income 

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in 
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows: 

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred

Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the 
timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in the 
recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

c Revenue and other income 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

None of the revenue streams of the Company have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12 
months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations. 

Specific revenue streams 

The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Company are: 

Affiliation fees 

The Company earns revenue from provision of services to the clubs. Revenue is recognised over time in the 
accounting period when services are rendered. 

The routine or recurring service contracts where the services provided are substantially the same, the 
consumption over time and whose consideration consists of a recurring fixed amount over the term of the 
contract (e.g. monthly or annual payment), in such a way that the customer receives and consumes the benefits 
of the services as the Company provides them, the revenue recognition model is based on the time elapsed 
output method. 

Under this method, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the contract and costs are 
recognised on an accrual basis 

Government Grant 

Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently 
specific performance obligations then the revenue is recognised when control of each performance obligations 
is satisfied. 

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement but may include management of 
education events, presentations at symposiums and specific training courses. Each performance obligation is 
considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within grant agreements 
there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have 
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract. 

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are 
deemed to be the most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit. 

Interest revenue 

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

Subscriptions 

Revenue from the provision of membership subscriptions is recognised on a straight line basis over the 
financial year. 
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

c Revenue and other income 

Other income 

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it. 

d Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

e Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

f Property, plant and equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 

Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable. 

Land and buildings 

Land and buildings are measured using the revaluation model. 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model. 

Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets 
useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 
Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 
Buildings 7.5% prime cost - 40% diminishing value 
Plant and Equipment 2.5% - 7.5% prime cost 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

f Property, plant and equipment 

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

g Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred). 

Financial assets 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Classification 

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured 
at: 

• amortised cost 

• fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its 
business model for managing financial assets. 

Amortised cost 

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where: 

• the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash 
and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method less provision for impairment. 

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss 
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 
income as described above are measured at FVTPL. 
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Bowls Queensland Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

g Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income are recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets: 

• financial assets measured at amortised cost 

• debt investments measured at FVOCI 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significant since initial recognition 
and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and 
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis 
based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking 
information. 

The Company uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant 
increase in credit risk. 

The Company uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when: 

• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse to the 
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

• the financial assets is more than 90 days past due. 

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Entity in 
accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability 
weighted approach. 

Trade receivables 

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an 
estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has determined the probability of non-payment of 
the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default. 

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in 
finance expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is 
written off against the associated allowance. 

Where the Company renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new expected 
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value 
is recognised in profit or loss. 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

g Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss 
model in AASB 9. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 
months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime 
losses are estimated and recognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and lease liabilities. 

h Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment 
indicator for tangible and intangible assets. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, 
being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the asset's 
carrying amount. Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised 
immediately in profi t and loss. 

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset's ability to 
generate net cash inflows and when the company would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future 
economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of an asset. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of a class of asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is debited against the revaluation surplus is 
respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the 
revaluation surplus for that same class of asset. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are 
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

This involves an assessment of whether: 

• The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within
the agreement. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified asset. 
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

Leases 

• The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use. 

• The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision making rights in relation to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. 

Lessee accounting 

The non-lease components included in the lease agreement have been separated and are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. 

At the lease commencement, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the 
lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Company believes it is reasonably certain 
that the option will be exercised. 

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the 
lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any 
lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for impairment 
in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the 
commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be 
readily determined then the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the 
lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Company's 
assessment of lease term. 

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is 
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

Exceptions to lease accounting 

The Company has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases 
with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the 
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

k Employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within 
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In 
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the 
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality 
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2024 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

k Employee benefits 
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss. 

Employee benefits are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position is the Company does 
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date 
regardless of the classification of the liability for measurement purposes under AASB 119. 

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the 
financial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the 
estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

Key estimates - Impairment 

The Company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the 
Company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are 
reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions. 

Key estimates - property held at fair value 

An independent valuation of the Enoggera property (land and buildings) carried at fair value was obtained as at 
26 August 2020. The directors have reviewed and adopted this valuation prepared by Hymans Valuers and 
Auctioneers for the financial year ended 31 December 2020. The market value was determined using direct 
comparison with the available sales evidence within the surrounding locality. 

An independent valuation of the Coorparoo property (land and buildings) carried at fair value was obtained as at 
13 December 2023. The directors have reviewed and adopted this valuation prepared by Hymans Valuers and 
Auctioneers for the financial year ended 31 December 2023. The market value was determined using direct 
comparison with the available sales evidence within the surrounding locality. 

Key estimates - Provisions 

As described in the accounting policies, provIsIons are measured at management's best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking 
into account a range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained. 

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 26

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page 27

Financials



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 28

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page 29

Financials



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 30

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page 31

Financials



Bowls Queensland Limited 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

Director’s Declaration

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 32

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Bowls Queensland Limited

Independent Audit Report to the members of Bowls Queensland Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Bowls Queensland Limited (the Company), which comprises the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2024 and its financial 
  performance for the year then ended ; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosure and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is
information included in the Directors report, (but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Corporations
Act 2001, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial reporter, if

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Forvis Mazars Assurance Pty Limited
Authorised Audit Company: 338599

Michael Georghiou
Director

Brisbane,  19  February 2025
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Coaching Committee’s Report

Alan Thorp  
(Co-ordinator & 
Board Liaison)

Dennis O’Toole

Eric Tomsene

Jacqui Hineman

Mal Mackney

David Hatfield

Committee

In 2024 the State 
Coaching Committee 
had a busy year, but 
not as busy as 2023. 
I attribute this slow 
start to a consequence 
of the slow uptake of 
grants being offered for 
coaches/umpires to visit 
specific remote areas 
throughout Queensland 
to provide Coaching and 
Officiating courses. 

Eleven districts were visited with many 
different coaching activities being 
provided at a number of clubs throughout 
the State. Some districts were visited 
more than once during 2024, depending 
on demand. Activities were conducted in 
more than 45 clubs during the year.  

This year, 200+ bowlers attended Skills/
Bowling Arm days under the guidance 
of Presenters and Assessors (P&As) from 
Bowls Queensland. The numbers were 
down for 2024 but are expected to increase 
in 2025. 

More than 60 bowlers were reaccredited, 
and it will be interesting to see how many 
will continue to reaccredit if and when 
the new coach pathways are adopted 
and introduced by Bowls Australia. The 
number of bowlers accrediting as club 

and introductory coaches was above the 
2023 figures with an increase of around 25 
members making the total 136. Included 
in this number are a few bowlers who 
opted to do the Bowls Australia on-line 
course which then requires a P&A from BQ 
to complete the course. This involves an 
on-green assessment, totalling around six 
hours, which has caused significant delays 
between the two components of the 
course.  The demographics in Queensland 
make this method of delivery in its current 
format totally inadequate, as bowlers 
lose interest in becoming a coach due to 
lengthy delays.

Having conducted some of these courses 
over the last 14 months with Dennis 
O’Toole, the time that members looked 
at completing the on-green component 
(sometimes longer than five months) 
rendered the participants as totally 
unprepared. They had forgotten the 
majority of the on-line component which 
made the revision period extremely long 
and very time consuming. 

The recommendation from the State 
Coaching Committee for it to be a success 
in Queensland, a period of no longer than 
four weeks must be enforced between the 
two components. This undoubtedly will 
lend itself to courses being more expensive 
and less demanding if the pathways are 
enforced by Bowls Australia. Common 
sense as outlined with demographics only 
highlights this problem. 

There were many other activities 
conducted during the year which 
included coach’s workshops, selection and 
competition modules and State Coaching 
Committee  (SCC) members working with 
Junior Development programs. 

On a number of occasions, SCC members 
were required to work with State sides as 
coaches or team managers and this was a 
great initiative by Bowls Queensland.  

Unfortunately, no coaches nominated 
to form a Sub Committee to the State 
Coaching Committee in 2024, which 
posed a very heavy workload on the 
six SCC members. Hopefully, this year 
some coaches may like the experience of 
working at the State level and nominate. 
The main requirement to be a member 
of either of the committees, is that you 
become an accredited P&A at the time 
of nomination or be willing to undertake 

the training. I am happy to announce 
that Geoff Campbell from the Sunshine 
Coast District, Kawana Bowls Club, has 
been invited to join the State Coaching 
Committee and we welcome Geoff on 
board as he brings a lot of experience and 
knowledge to the table. Welcome Geoff. 
At this moment I am also in the process 
of finding other suitable candidates for 
either committee roles and hopefully I can 
encourage others to come on board.

Toward the end of the year we lost the 
services of Eric Tomsene who after 40+ 
years of coaching decided it was time to 
retire. Eric did an exceptional amount of 
work on the Sunshine Coast and other 
areas through out Queensland for a 
number of years as member of the SCC. I 
personally thank him for his dedication and 
loyalty and we all wish him the very best 
for the future.    

As the Medical Classifier in Queensland for 
the physically impaired and a member of 
the classifying team with Dennis O’Toole 
and Tony Bonnell, we have classified a 
number of athletes for disability bowls in 
2024. I envisage for this to continue with 
the exposure and opportunities being 
provided by the Gold Coast Tweed and 
Moreton Bay Districts plus live streaming 
about para bowls and other athletes 
with disabilities including the Life Stream 
and Hearing Impaired. I expect the 
number of requests for classification to 
rise substantially in the next few years. 
Finally, the development of the Youth 
High Performance Academy has been 
exceptional in the second year under 
the guidance of Lynsey Clarke from BA 
with the Academy offering a tremendous 
opportunity for those young bowlers who 
are fortunate enough to gain entry.

In closing, I would like to thank all 
members of the SCC committee and BQ 
Board for all their the hard work and the 
staff who look after the administration 
aspects for us. Thank you Cath, Stu, 
Roxanne, Brett, and Jo, editor of the Bowler.

All in all it has been a rewarding year and 
the Coaching Committee look forward 
to providing many coaching activities to 
members in 2025. 

Alan Thorp 
Co-ordinator

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 36

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



Umpire Committee’s Report

John Kirkpatrick (Co-
ordinator)

Joan Brotherton OAM

Jessie Cannon

Barry Ashby

Chris Berry

Joan Brotherton OAM 
(Board Liaison)

Committee

I would like to express my thanks to members of the committee 
for their assistance and guidance throughout the last year. 

BQ Coach Eric Tomsene (pictured far right) with 24 bowlers who 
completed the coaching course at Tweed Heads in early July

Risk & Policy Committee’s Report

Graham Tanis  
(Co-ordinator)

Joan Brotherton, OAM

Committee

When requesting a law interpretation of a general 
query relating to the laws, please check with your 
local umpire committee.  If not satisfied with the 
response, then forward same to the BQ Umpire 
committee. A simple query that was received related 
to the length of the roll of the jack: Is it 21 or 23 
metres?  This could very easily be answered locally.

The new P&A Facilitator’s Guide has been dispatched 
from Bowls Australia.  In the near future, courses will 
resume for the reaccreditation of current P&As.  We 
are still chasing a couple of P&As for various locations 
throughout Queensland.  BA has forwarded a format 
in which they require all P&A reaccreditations to 
occur. There is only one criteria, which is that umpires 
who wish to become a P&A have at least four years 
experience and a sound knowledge of the laws of the 
game. This is not an arduous undertaking; however, 
requires a face-to-face meeting at a course being 
conducted. I am making inquiries if this can be done 
electronically.

The committee is prepared to attend any district 
without a P&A to conduct umpire courses.  We would 
like at least six people willing to undertake the 
course. This is at no cost to the relevant 
district, other than the relevant application cost 
when players apply to undertake the course. The only 
criteria is that any person wishing to undertake the 
relevant course/s have at least two years’ experience.

An issue has arisen in a couple of districts and clubs 
on ‘conditions of play’.  To go out on a limb, I would 
guess that there are a number of clubs throughout 
the State that do not have any conditions of play 
for their competitions, making a ruling on the run 
if something happens.  To give an example, the 
duration of a game is contained in the conditions of 
play with the number of ends that constitute a game.

To complete a set of conditions of play, I recommend 
going to the Bowls Queensland website and looking 
at the conditions of play for various events. The 
relevant club can then modify those conditions of 
play to suit its respective competitions. If a club or 
district wish the BQ Umpire Committee to review its 
conditions of play, please forward them to us and we 
will return them with suggestions as soon as possible.

At the last meeting in September, I made mention 
that if there are players, clubs or districts that wish 
to have law either introduced or reviewed, please 
forward this to us with supporting documentation.

John Kirkpatrick 
Co-ordinator

(previously Audit & Risk Committee)

As a result of a review of the Bowls Queensland Finance Policy and 
the introduction of improved controls on the use of company credit 
cards, the Board agreed to remove the audit role of this committee 
and renamed it as the Risk and Policy Committee.

The Board adopted a minimalistic Risk Appetite Statement and conducted a detailed Risk Assessment in 
accordance with the principles of AS/NZS ISO 31000:2018, assessing all relevant risks and implementing 
appropriate risk mitigation where appropriate. The revised Policy and Risk Register will be reviewed annually.

As part of the Risk Assessment, it was noted that many of the existing Bowls Queensland Policies had not been 
reviewed for many years, a significant departure from good governance.

The introduction of the National Integrity Framework has had a significant impact on some Policies and the Board 
has instructed this committee to review all BQ policies. This is a work in progress, expected to be completed by 
June 2025. 

Graham Tanis 
Co-ordinator 
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In 2025, this event will be held in January, 
but will be played in the school holidays near 
Easter in 2026 to avoid the weather conditions 
in January.

The District Sides were held at the northern 
end of the Gold Coast with the Men’s Districts 
at Broadbeach and Musgrave Hill and the 
Ladies’ Districts at Helensvale and Paradise 
Point. There was heavy rain at some venues, 
while the sun was shining at others. All clubs 
involved were great and we thank them for 
their assistance in running our events. This year 
it was played as a section of 20. This is now 
changed back to two sections of 10. This way 
weather conditions will be at each individual 
club. Also, the top two teams from each section 
go to Division 1, the next two to Division 2 and 
so on.

The State Championships were also held 
at the Gold Coast District and following on 
from previous years, all finals at were held at 
one club and players were happy with this 
arrangement. All the host clubs went out 
of their way to assist us. A special thanks to 
them and to all the volunteers as we could 
not run our events without you. After the 
inclement weather during the District Sides, 
perfect conditions prevailed in the State 
Championships, with the greens improving 
initially and playing excellently for most of the 
events.

The Match Committee was involved with 
the Multi Disability Championships and 
I must congratulate all players for their 
sportsmanship, their courtesy to each other 
and their will to succeed at their sport. It 
was unbelievable to watch and I’m sure an 
inspiration to all the spectators who were 
there. We must thank Chermside and Northern 
Suburbs for their hosting of the event and the 
trouble that they went to which enabled all our 
players to compete. 

 The Indoor Qualifying events were played at 
Paradise Point and Tweed Heads and we thank 
those clubs for hosting the events and we 
congratulate the Men’s and Women’s qualifiers. 
We would like to see more entries for these 
events as the number of qualifiers we are 
allocated for the finals are tied to the number 

of entries we receive.  

Bargara Club in the Bundaberg District hosted 
the Champion of Club Champions and once 
again the standard of bowls was excellent as 
expected. This was the showcase event of the 
year. 

Our next event of the year was the State 
Pennant Finals. Both men and women were 
at Tweed Heads Bowls Club and as usual this 
club excelled in hosting our event. The finals 
were a joy to watch and were played in a 
great spirit, showcasing our sport admirably. 
Congratulations to all the players for a great 
spectacle. 

For our penultimate event of the year we 
played the State 8 A-Side event, which was 
very well hosted at Capalaba Bowls Club.

The State District Mixed Pairs was our final 
event of the year and was held at Souths 
Suburban Club in Mackay District and once 
again it was hosted with all the expertise that 
we would expect from this club.

Congratulations also to all the players in our 
State events, without you all we wouldn’t 
have any events at all. I hope that you enjoyed 
yourselves and we will see you all again in 
2025.

Finally we wish to thank everyone for their 
support throughout the year, our families, our 
committees and all at Bowls Queensland. Also 
we wish to thank all the clubs who hosted our 
events and who always went out of their way 
to make us very welcome.

Special thanks to my committee for their 
support and work over the year and I look 
forward to working with you all again for a 
successful 2025. 

I would like to welcome Micheal Sorrensen to 
the family at BQ. He has big shoes to fill taking 
over part of the workload that Roxanne has so 
successfully done for many years.

 

Jim See					   
Co-ordinator		  	
	

Match Committee’s Report

The 2024 bowls year started as usual with the Junior 
State Championships held at Burnett and Across the 
Waves Bowls Clubs in the Bundaberg District. 

Jim See 
(Co-ordinator)

Ron Somerville 

Linda Morish

John DeErneste

Christine Russell

Linda Mitchell

Wendy Wilson 
(Board Liaison)

Committee
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Ron Somerville  
(Co-ordinator)

John DeErneste

Linda Morish

Denis Kirkman

Jim See

Linda Mitchell

Geoff Osborne 
(Board Liaison)

Selectors attended all major State events during 2024 to assess 
current State team and State squad members, as well as players 
who have submitted an EOI for State representative selection, 
and to identify new and emerging talent. Christina Pavlov 

(Co-ordinator)

Ron Mitchell 

Wendy Wilson

Kurt Brown

Gary Costigan 
(Board Liaison)

Committee

Selection Committee’s Report

The benefit of selectors watching events that draw 
players from across all districts in the State is reflected 
in the opportunities being offered to these players, 
particularly in attending state trials, selection to 
teams for the North vs South Challenge, or selection 
to State squads and teams.

State Squads 
The decision by BQ to name State squads for 2024 
was very well received by players. Players named in 
squads meet all the criteria for state representative 
selection. A player may be selected to one or more 
squads or added to a squad during the year.

U18 Squad  
2024 was seen as a development year for our 
U18 squad with 11 of the 16 players making their 
representative debuts. Highlights for the Junior 
squad in 2024 included a two-day training camp 
in April at Hamilton Bowls Club and U18 tri-series 
against NSW and VIC in August at Club Tweed. The  
School Sport Australia Championships at Geelong 
in September was another highlight, where QLD 
won one gold, two silver and an overall team bronze 
medal. Two players were named in the All Australian 
Schools Lawn Bowls team and have the opportunity 
to represent in either a QLD or QLD/NSW composite 
team at the Australian U18 championship. 

QLD v NSW test series July, St Johns Park, NSW 
This was the final selection event for the VIC test/
Australian Sides Championships. QLD won 2 of the 6 
series played, including U25 Women, and 40-59 Men. 
QLD v VIC test series September, Tweed Heads, QLD 
Changes were made to both men and ladies open 
teams following their defeat by NSW in July, with new 
players coming into the side and positional changes 
made. The Women’s and Men’s teams won their 
respective series against VIC 3-0.

THE NATIONALS October, Gold Coast Tweed 
U18 QLD boys’ team won the Boys’ Overall Best State 
Trophy with gold medal performance from the boy’s 
fours and silver from both the boy’s triples and pairs. 
The U18 girls came away with silver in the singles 
and bronze in the triples. QLD finished 3rd overall. 
The composite side won silver in the girl’s fours and 
bronze in the boy’s fours. The QLD Para team took out 
the overall best performed State for the third year in 
a row at the Para nationals. At the Australian Senior 
Sides, QLD women’s senior side claimed the silver 
medal. QLD women won gold, the Marj Morris Trophy 
and the gold medal for the best performed rink at 
the Australian Sides Championships , while QLD men 
claimed the silver medal for the second year in a row.

QLD men and women won the NT test series (played 
during the Nationals) 3-0.

NORTH v SOUTH November, Souths Suburban 
Mackay 
South ladies won the series 2-1 and regained the 
shield won by the North ladies in 2023. The South 
Men won the series 3-0 in a close contest.

I would like to thank Brett, Roxanne, Bill and the rest 
of the Bowls Queensland staff for their assistance 
throughout the year and to the selection committee 
Ron, Kurt, Wendy, Gary and Brad (up until July) for 
giving up a considerable amount of their own time 
to assess and evaluate players, manage teams and 
attend major events. 

Christina Pavlov  
Co-ordinator
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Thank you to Bowls Queensland for forming the 
Junior Committee.

With the Committee only starting in October 2024, 
and having the Christmas Holidays we have had two 
meetings.

Des Kemp 
(Co-ordinator)

Richard Brain

Jacqui Hineman

Christopher Scott

Kane Nelson

Chris Falkner

Cody Gerick

Wendy Wilson 
(Board Liaison)

Committee

Junior Committee’s Report

The next meeting is scheduled for February after the 2025 Junior State Championships.

We would like to thank Club Helensvale and Club Robina for hosting this major junior event. 
Facilities were excellent, and a huge thank you must go to the volunteers, umpires, markers 
and staff of both clubs.

Thank you to Kelsey Cottrell for organising the Drakes Pride packs for our new juniors 
attending. This was very much appreciated by juniors and parents. What a positive moment 
to have Kelsey presenting this to the Under-12s.

Thank you to Nathan Rice and Brett Wilkie for the training morning, it was greatly 
appreciated.

To the Match Committee, the event organiser, and the Board of BQ thank you very much for 
your work on this event.

Thank you to the selectors for all your effort.

To my fellow committee members thank you very much for being part of shaping the juniors 
for the future.

Looking forward to a bigger and brighter 2025.

Des Kemp 
Co-ordinator

U18 Junior Camp held at Hamilton Bowls Club, Brisbane on April 8-9

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2021

Page 40

Bowls Queensland Annual Report 2024



As seen at Club Pine Rivers and Moama Bowling Club, the homes of the Bowls Premier League,  
a fabric roof by MakMax Australia gives your club members and visitors a year-round  
‘premier league’ bowling experience. 

When it comes to premium quality, MakMax Bowling Green Canopies are in a league of their own. 

Choose MakMax Australia for;

• A choice of unique bowling green canopy designs.

• Fully qualified & registered engineers, plus in-house designers  
to help bring your project to life.

• A Queensland-based company with more than 40 years  
of large-span shade structure experience!

• A proud sponsor and supporter of Bowls Australia since 2011.

1300 625 629
info@makmax.com.au
www.makmax.com.au/bowling

CONTACT US FOR A CHAT ...

BOWLING GREEN CANOPIES

Bowling Green Canopy Specialists

mailto:info@makmax.com.au
http://www.makmax.com.au/bowling
https://www.makmax.com.au/bowling-green-canopies/
https://www.makmax.com.au/bowling-green-canopies/


Junior State Championships
January 7-12  

Held at Burnett and Across the Waves Bowls Clubs  
Finals at Burnett Bowls Club 

Girls
U/18 Singles 

Gold: Lilly Vardy (Club Tweed)
Silver: Tilah Mason (The Albert)
Bronze: Ashlin Johnson (South Townsville)

U/15 Singles 

Gold: Lacey Gerick (Club Kawana)
Silver: Mia Scurr (Millmerran)
Bronze: April Lawrence (Atherton)

Boys

U/18 Singles

Gold: Todd Brain (Algester)
Silver: Trent Brehmer (Algester)
Bronze: Zedd Peters (Burnett)

U/15 Singles

Gold: Cooper Sutton (Pialba)
Silver: Jamieson Morgan (Burnett)
Bronze: Ben Hagan (Pine Rivers Mem)

Open
U/12 Singles 

Gold: Chaz Doherty (Burnett)
Silver:  Keegan McGuire (Laidley)
Bronze: Shae Daly (Paradise Point)
 
Open U/18 Pairs

Gold: Samuel Collier (Algester), Stella Palmer (Broadbeach)
Silver: Todd Brain (Algester), Jack Chirgwin (Algester)
Bronze: Rhys Gillman (Marlin Coast), Riley Gerick (Capalaba)

Open U/15 Pairs

Gold: Marley Peters (Burnett), Cooper Sutton (Pialba)
Silver: Thomas Brehmer (Algester), Ben Harrison (Paradise Point)
Bronze: Cade Daly (Paradise Point), Shae Daly (Paradise Point)

Open Triples

Gold: Todd Brain (Algester), Samuel Collier (Algester), Jack Chirgwin 
(Algester)
Silver: Lacey Gerick (Club Kawana), Travis Pearce (Kenilworth), Riley 
Gerick (Capalaba)
Bronze: Brody Carter (Pialba), Steven Bird-Monk (Burleigh Heads), 
Rhys Gillman (Marlin Coast)

Open Fours

Gold: Thomas Brehmer (Algester), Trent Brehmer (Algester), Todd 
Brain (Algester), Jack Chirgwin (Algester)
Silver: Nic Marinelli (Broadbeach), Xavier Parkinson (Broadbeach), 
Corey Marshall (Algester), Samuel Collier (Algester)
Bronze: Hayden Flood (Glasshouse), Dekota Brindle (Hamilton), Zach 
Flood (Glasshouse), Jack Hayward (Glasshouse)

U18 Girl’s Singles Winner Lilly Vardy U18 Boy’s Singles Winner Todd Brain
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U15 Boys Singles Winner Cooper Sutton U18 Open Pairs Winners Stella Palmer & 
Samuel Collier

U18 Open Fours Winners Thomas Brehmer, Trent Brehmer, Todd Brain & Jack Chirgwin

U18 Open Triples Winners Jack Chirgwin, Todd Brain &  
Samuel Collier

U15 Girls Singles Winner Lacey Gerick

U15 Open Pairs Winners Marley Peters & Cooper Sutton
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Queensland Secondary Schools Cup
August 21-22

Held at Club Pine Rivers

Winners
Winner:  Tannum Sands State High – Braeden Andrews & Jacob Hoger 
 
Runner-up:  St Benedict’s College 2 – Liam Abela & Mitch Hagan 

Finalists
Atherton State High – Midori Marti & Andrew Lawrence

Balmoral State High – Will Searson & Jack Norum

Bundaberg Christian College – Frazer Nelson & Jamieson Morgan

Mackay Christian College – Cruise Mason & Kobi Sullivan

Mt Larcom High School – Chloe Draper & Travis Draper

St Benedict’s College 1 – Adam Hourigan & Ben Hagan

St Benedict’s College 2 – Liam Abela & Mitch Hagan

St Catherine’s College – Alfie Moretto & Harry Craig

Smithfield State High – Kobi Smith & Paper Ludwig

Southern Cross State High – Brodie Fulmer & Jack Hayward

Stretton State College – Noah McCandles & Thomas Brehmer

Tannum Sands State High – Braeden Andrews & Jacob Hoger

Trinity College – Keala Nukunuku & Darius Nicol

West Moreton Anglican College – Declan Richards & Taylor Baart

Winner:  Tannum Sands State High – Jacob Hoger & Braeden Andrews Runner-up:  St Benedict’s College 2 – Mitch Hagan & Liam Abela 
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Queensland vs VIC Test Series 
September 14-15

Held at Club Tweed

Women 
 
1st Test: QLD def  VIC 73-53 

2nd Test: QLD def  VIC 72-47 

3rd Test: QLD def VIC 66-55

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Kelsey Cottrell

Representing Queensland:

•	 Candice Ayton, Pamela Rowe, Bolivia Millerick, Kelsey Cottrell

•	 Yvonne Lovelock, Janet Healey, Julie Keegan, Lynsey Clarke

•	 Amanda Haevecker, Emma Spicer, Wendy Wilson, Chloe Stewart

Men 
 
1st Test: QLD def VIC 57-48

2nd Test: QLD def VIC 59-57 

3rd Test: QLD def VIC 61-47 

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Kane Nelson

Representing Queensland:

•	 Aaron Hewson, Barrie Lester, Nathan Rice, Aron Sherriff

•	 Dale McWhinney-Shillington, Nic Gosley, Sean Ingham, Sean Baker

•	 Brendan Wilson, Jamie Anderson, Brett Wilkie, Kane Nelson

Queensland menQueensland women

https://antonbrownfunerals.com.au/


2024 Australian Indoor Qualifying Rounds
 
Men’s Qualifying Rounds held at Paradise Point and Club Tweed

Men: June 1-2
Michael Burgess (Burleigh Heads)

Matthew Blyth (Northern Suburbs)

 
Women’s Qualifying Rounds held at Club Tweed
 
Women: April 27
Chloe Stewart (Club Tweed)

President’s XII (ANZAC Test) versus 
Australian Defence Force Lawn Bowls 
April 19-20

Held at Capalaba Sports Club
1st Test: Queensland def Australian Defence Force Lawn Bowls 82-45

2nd Test: Queensland def Australian Defence Force Lawn Bowls 70-43

3rd Test: Queensland def Australian Defence Force Lawn Bowls 75-40

Winner – Queensland (3 - 0)

Representing Queensland:

•	 Jacinta Weier, Emma Spicer, John Hammond, Brett Wilkie

•	 Mitchell Mears, Gail Crompton, Justin Cribbin, Bill Cornehls 

•	 Olivia Rothwell, Anthony Bonnell, Pam Rowe, Brendan Wilson
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Men’s Qualifying Rounds held at Paradise Point and Club Tweed

Men: June 1-2
Michael Burgess (Burleigh Heads)

Matthew Blyth (Northern Suburbs)

 
Women’s Qualifying Rounds held at Club Tweed
 
Women: April 27
Chloe Stewart (Club Tweed)

State District Sides 
May 8-11

Held at Broadbeach, Musgrave Hill, Paradise Point, Club Helensvale Bowls Clubs

WOMEN 
Division 1 Winner: Gold Coast Tweed “Blue” (Division 1 – Gold Coast Tweed “Blue”, Cunningham, Bundaberg, Mackay)

Division 2 Winner: Brisbane (Division 2 – Brisbane, Sunshine Coast, Gold Coast Tweed “Gold”, Condamine)

Division 3 Winner: Downs (Division 3 – Downs, Tropical Far Nth QLD, Port Curtis, Gateway)

Division 4 Winner: Moreton Bay (Division 4 – Moreton Bay, Fraser Coast “Blue”, Central QLD, Fraser Coast “White”)

Division 5 Winner: North QLD (Division 5 – North QLD, Burnett, Maranoa/Warrego, Leichhardt)

MEN 
Division 1 Winner: Gold Coast Tweed (Division 1 –  Gold Coast Tweed, Gateway, Downs, North QLD)

Division 2 Winner: Cunningham (Division 2 – Cunningham, Tropical Far Nth QLD, Mackay, Moreton Bay)

Division 3 Winner: Sunshine Coast (Division 3 – Sunshine Coast, Brisbane, Southern Downs, Bundaberg)

Division 4 Winner: Fraser Coast (Division 4 – Fraser Coast, Condamine, Maranoa/Warrego, Port Curtis)

Division 5 Winner: Central QLD (Division 5 – Central QLD, North West QLD, Leichhardt, Burnett)

Division 1 Winners Gold Coast Tweed (men) Division 1 Winners Gold Coast Tweed (men) 

Division 1 Winners Gold Coast Tweed “Blue” (women) Division 1 Winners Gold Coast Tweed “Blue” (women) 
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MIXED PAIRS
Gold:  
Bolivia Millerick (Broadbeach) 
Kane Nelson (Capalaba)

Silver: 
Lauren Schultz (Northern Suburbs) 
Dean McWhinney (Hamilton)

Bronze: 
Emma Boyd (Club Tweed) 
Dale McWhinney-Shillington (Burleigh Heads)

Singles Winners Chloe Stewart & Brendan Wilson

State Championships  
May 13-26

Hosted by Musgrave Hill Bowls Club, Broadbeach, Paradise Point, Benowa, 
Southport, Robina, Mudgeeraba, Mermaid Beach Bowls Clubs.  

Finals at Musgrave Hill Bowls Club

Mixed Pairs Winners Bolivia Millerick & Kane Nelson

WOMEN
Singles

Gold: 
Chloe Stewart (Club Tweed)

Silver: 
Katelyn Inch (Club Kawana)

Bronze: 
Gail Crompton (Club Tweed)

Pairs

Gold: 
Maree Gibbs (Millmerran) 
Tracy Foster (Algester)

Silver: 
Emma Spicer (Northern Suburbs) 
Wendy Wilson (Northern Suburbs)

Bronze:  
Chloe Stewart (Club Tweed) 
Katelyn Inch (Club Kawana)

Over 60s Pairs

Gold:  
Heather Hodgson (Broadbeach)
Serena Matthews (Broadbeach)

Silver: 
Ruth Smith (Beenleigh)
Gail Waitai (Broadbeach)

Bronze: 
Merril Kerss (Beaudesert)
Lynda Brownen (Club Kawana)

Triples

Gold: 
Brenda Balchin (Club Kawana)
Brenda Thompson (Club Helensvale)
Noelene Dutton (Club Kawana)

Silver: 
Yvonne Lovelock (Musgrave Hill)
Karen Goldsworthy (Broadbeach)
Bolivia Millerick (Broadbeach)

Bronze:  
Maree Gibbs (Millmerran)
Adele Pershouse (Bargara)
Serena Matthews (Broadbeach)

Fours

Gold: 
Kira Bourke (Club Tweed)
Lynsey Clarke (Club Tweed)
Chloe Stewart (Club Tweed)
Kelsey Cottrell (Club Helensvale) 
 
Silver: 
Gail Meng (Souths Suburban)
Merril Ahern (Club Kawana)
Rhonda Meng (Souths Suburban)
Jenny Blundell (Club Kawana)
 
Bronze: 
Yvonne Lovelock (Musgrave Hill)
Tilly Orero (Algester)
Emma Boyd (Club Tweed)
Candice Ayton (Club Helensvale)
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MEN

Singles

Gold: 
Brendan Wilson (Pine Rivers Mem)

Silver: 
Luke Turner (Club Helensvale)

Bronze: 
Adam Liddell (Pine Rivers Mem)

Pairs

Gold: 
Dean McWhinney (Hamilton)
Dale McWhinney-Shillington (Burleigh Heads)

Silver: 
Sean Ingham (Broadbeach)
Sean Baker (Musgrave Hill)

Bronze:  
Jacob Nelson (Capalaba)
Kane Nelson (Capalaba)

Over 60s Pairs 
 
Gold: 
Max Jaffray (Club Tweed)
Neville Jenkins (Club Tweed)

Silver: 
Ian Apps (Pine Rivers Mem)
Derek Bone (Pine Rivers Mem)

Bronze: 
Kevin Bell (Bribie Island) 
Greg Rolls (Red Hill)

Triples

Gold: 
Andrew Evans (Capalaba)
Jake Rynne (Carina)
Kane Nelson (Capalaba)

Silver: 
Gary Pearson (Burleigh Heads) 
Ian Law (Burleigh Heads)
Gary Law (Burleigh Heads)

Bronze:  
Kepler Wessels (Capalaba) 
Chris Le Lievre (Musgrave Hill)
Matthew Lucas (Club Helensvale)

Pairs Winners Dean McWhinney, Maree Gibbs, Tracy Foster &  
Dale McWhinney-Shillington

Triples Winners Back Row: Andrew Evans, Jake Rynne & Kane Nelson. 
Front Row: Brenda Balchin, Brenda Thompson & Noelene Dutton

Fours Winners Back Row: Cody Gerick, Brad Piper, Kane Nelson & Tyler 
Pettigrew. Front Row: Chloe Stewart, Kira Bourke, Kelsey Cottrell & 
Lynsey Clarke

Fours

Gold: 
Tyler Pettigrew (Carina) 
Brad Piper (Carina) 
Cody Gerick (Capalaba) 
Kane Nelson (Capalaba)

Silver: 
Scott DeJongh-Fitzpatrick (Club Helensvale)
Isaac Maughan (Club Helensvale)
Brett Wilkie (Club Helensvale)
Adam White (Club Helensvale)

Bronze: 
Chris Rosanes (Pine Rivers Mem)
Brendan Wilson (Pine Rivers Mem)
Ryan Burnett (Pine Rivers Mem)
Aaron Hewson (Pine Rivers Mem)
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WOMEN
Singles
Gold: 
Adele Pershouse (Bargara)
Silver:  
Vicki Cameron (North Ipswich)
Bronze: 
Wendy Wilson (Northern Suburbs)

Pairs
Gold: 
Claire Turley & Lynsey Clarke (Club Tweed)
Silver: 
Kate Leverton & Wendy Jones (Thuringowa)
Bronze: 
Connie Rixon & Adele Pershouse (Bargara)

Fours
Gold: 
Lilly Vardy, Debbie Franzi, Serena Bonnell, Ellen Falkner  
(Club Tweed)

Silver: 
Kate Leverton, Denise Davis, Corinne Dibnah, Wendy Jones 
(Thuringowa City)

Bronze: 
Shirley Cornish, Jane Mantle, Jan Sullivan, Ellen Ross  
(Maroochydore)

MEN
Singles
Gold: 
Brett Wilkie (Club Helensvale)
Silver: 
Glen Pitts (Algester)
Bronze: 
Mark Armstrong (Pialba)

Pairs
Gold:  
Jacob Nelson & Kane Nelson (Capalaba)
Silver: 
Glen Pitts & Cohen Litfin (Algester)
Bronze: 
Tom Blaszczyk & Ryan Digby (Enoggera)

Fours
Gold:  
Trent Healey, Michael Breen, James Templeton, Aaron Hewson 
(Pine Rivers Mem)

Silver: 
Ian McMah, Mick Tobin, Paul Kajewski, Tim Smith  
(The Waves Bundaberg)

Bronze: 
Riley Gerick, Cody Gerick, Jacob Nelson, Kane Nelson  
(Capalaba)

Champion of Club Champions
October 26-31

Held At Bargara Bowls Club

Men’s Fours Winners Aaron Hewson, James Templeton, 
Michael Breen & Trent Healey

Women’s Fours Winners Ellen Falkner, Debbie Franzi, 
Serena Bonnell & Lilly Vardy

Pairs Winners  Claire Turley, Lynsey Clarke, Jacob Nelson & Kane Nelson

Singles Winners Adele Pershouse & Brett Wilkie
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State 8 A-Side 
November 9-10

Held at Capalaba Sports Club

Winners
Gold – Algester Bowls Club 
Fours: Heather Bailey, Tracy Foster, Mathew 
Norrie, Cohen Litfin 
Pairs: Denise Gilbert & Paul Gilbert 
Pairs: Pam Rowe & Glen Pitts

Silver – Broadbeach Bowls Club 
Fours: Cheryl Heaps, Karen Goldsworthy, 
Tomas Nathan, Scott Chamberlain 
Pairs:  Bradley Lawson & Bolivia Millerick 
Pairs:  Mitchell Mears & Julie Keegan

Bronze – Hamilton Bowls Club 
Fours: Barb McNeil, Jude Whaites, Todd 
McIntosh, Steven Tong 
Pairs:  Jacinta Weier & John Newell 
Pairs:  Jane Bush & Jason Moore

8 A-Side Winners Algester

State District Mixed Pairs
November 16-17

Held at Souths Suburban Bowls Club, 
Mackay

Mixed Pairs Winners Tom Blaszczyk & Emma Spicer

Group Winners

Broadbeach / Gold Coast Tweed; Algester / Cunningham; Cunnamulla / Maranoa/Warrego; Hamilton / Brisbane; Bargara / Bundaberg; 

Sarina / Mackay; Edge Hill / Tropical Far North QLD

Winners 
Gold: Emma Spicer & Tom Blaszczyk (Brisbane)

Silver: Serena Bonnell & Dennis McDonald (Gold Coast Tweed)

Bronze: John Hammond jnr & Jocelyn Haylock (Maranoa/
Warrego)
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State Pennant Division 1 
November 2-3 

Held at Club Tweed

WOMEN

Section 1 Winner: Club Tweed 
Section 2 Winner: Club Kawana 
FINAL: Club Tweed DEF Club Kawana 45-34 

Pennant 2024 Division 1 Winners Club Tweed women

Runners-up Club Kawana women

Representing Club Kawana:

Pauline Laverty, Fay Whittaker, Joan Tennent, Nolene Dutton
Lynda Brownen, Leigh Fortington, Maria Rigby, Katelyn Inch

 
Representing Club Tweed: 
Lilly Vardy, Gail Crompton, Emma Boyd, Chloe Stewart
Serena Bonnell, Kira Bourke, Claire Turley, Lynsey Clarke
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Runners-up Musgrave Hill Bowls Club men

MEN
 
Section 1 Winner: Musgrave Hill Bowls Club 
Section 2 Winner: Pine Rivers Memorial Bowls Club 
FINAL: Pine Rivers Memorial Bowls Club DEF Musgrave Hill Bowls Club 60-55  
 
Representing Pine Rivers Memorial Bowls Club:  
Jesse Turnbull, Andrew Todd, Brendan Wilson, Jason Carpenter
Jason Andrewartha, Michael Breen, Justin Knight, Aaron Hewson
Adam Liddell, Trent Healey, Corey Fuller, Chris Rosanes

Pennant 2024  Division 1 Winners Pine Rivers Memorial Bowls Club men

Representing Musgrave Hill Bowls Club:  
Joel Downey, Wilson Alexander, Peter Brown, Ryan Bester
Phillip Jordan, Dean Drummond, Dean McWhinney, Sean Baker
Tyler Pettigrew, Gary Mounsey, Samuel White, Nic Gosley

Page 53



Lifestream Open Singles Medallists: Allan Duffy (silver), Kate Juillerat (gold), Darren 
Jackson (bronze), Bruce Smallbon (fourth)

Lifestream
Open Singles
Gold: Kate Juillerat (Bargara)
Silver: Allan Duffy (Chermside)
Bronze: Darren Jackson (Club Helensvale)

Open Pairs
Gold: Bruce Smallbon (Cutheringa) & Allan Duffy (Chermside)
Silver: Damon Bartholomeusz (Capalaba) & Darren Jackson (Club 
Helensvale)
Bronze: Darren Davis (Diggers Mem) & John Stuart (Holland Park)

Physically Impaired
Men’s Singles
Gold: Stan Richards (Ingham)
Silver: Keith Druery (Club Pine Rivers)
Bronze: Clive Williams (Boonooroo Sandy Straits)

Women’s Singles
Gold: Serena Bonnell (Club Tweed)
Silver: Cheryl Lindfield (Mt Gravatt)
Bronze: Louise Hoskins (Sth Johnstone)

Open Pairs
Gold: Clive Williams (Boonooroo Sandy Straits) & Wes Brown (Club 
Pine Rivers)
Silver: Cooper Whitestyles (Souths Suburban) & Damien Delgado 
(Club Tweed)
Bronze: Annette Goldsworthy (Burnett) & Rod Bradley (Tully)

Vision Impaired
Open Singles
Gold: Scott Kinnear (Proserpine) & Dir. Rebecca Faulks
Silver: Jake Fehlberg (Bargara) & Dir. Cody Fehlberg 
Bronze: Saul Calikes (United) & Dir. Bob Proctor  (United)
Open Pairs
Gold: Scott Kinnear (Proserpine) with Dir. Rebecca Faulks and Jake 
Fehlberg (Bargara) with Dir. Cody Fehlberg
Silver: Vanessa Hinton (Enoggera) with Director Scott Molyneux and 
Stephen Cranefield (Salisbury) with Director “Boomer”
Bronze: Don Dias (Geebung) with Dir. Eric Bailey & Keith Haylett 
(The Waves Caloundra) with Dir. Barry Roberts

Hearing Impaired
Open Singles
Gold: Russell Jackson (Airlie Beach)
Silver: Peter Cox (Barbara)
Bronze: Brian Taylor (Beenleigh)

Open Pairs
Gold: Russell Jackson (Airlie Beach) & Andrew Crosbie (Airlie Beach) 
Silver: Eric Smith (Beenleigh) & Petrus Van Der Walt (Beenleigh)
Bronze: Suellen Tappenden (Mt Larcom) & Janet Hogan (Gladstone)

Multi Disability Championships
August 5-8

Held at Chermside and Northern Suburbs Bowls Clubs

Lifestream Open Pairs Winners: Bruce Smallbon (left) & Allan Duffy (second right) with 
Councillor Danita Parry (Marchant Ward) & BQ President Brian Marshall (right)
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Hearing Impaired Open Pairs Peter Cox & Stephen Faux (fourth), Petrus Van Der Walt & Eric 
Smith (silver), Russell Jackson & Andrew Crosbie (gold), Sue Tappenden & Janet Hogan (bronze)

Vision Impaired Open Pairs Winners: Scott Kinnear & Dir. Rebecca Faulks, Jake Fehlberg & 
Dir. Cody Fehlberg with QBBA President Helen Boardman (far left)

Fours winners Jessie Cottell, Rebecca Rixon, Shervawn Wilson 
& Nick Cahill

Physically Impaired Women’s Singles Gold Medal Winner: Serena Bonnell (right) with 
Chermside Bowls Club’s President Robert Barnes

Physically Impaired Men’s Singles Gold Medal Winner: Stan Richards (right) with BQ 
President Brian Marshall

Hearing Impaired Open Singles Finalists Stephen Faux (fourth), Russell Jackson (gold), 
Brian Taylor (bronze) & Peter Cox (silver)

Vision Impaired Singles Medallists: Silver Jake Fehlberg, Cody Fehlberg (Dir), Gold Scott 
Kinnear & Rebecca Faulks (Dir), Bronze Saul Calikes, Graham Kinnear (Dir)

Physically Impaired Pairs Finalists Back L-R: Louise Hoskins & Brett Sellars (fourth); Clive Williams & Wes Brown (gold); Annette Goldsworthy & Rod Bradley (bronze). Front L-R: Damien 
Delgado & Cooper Whitestyles (silver)
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North vs South Challenge
November 23-24

Held at Souths Surburban Bowling Club, Mackay

Women 
 
1st Test 	 North def South 66-54
2nd Test	South def North 68-37
3rd Test	 South def North 89-41

Test Series won by South (2 tests to 1) 

North Team - Women
•	 Bonnie Attwooll, Emma Rowbotham, Wendy Jones, Dealia Walsh
•	 Gail Meng, Leanne Gundry, Chloe Runge, Nicole Williams
•	 Charmayne Sleeman, Terry McAlary, Jocelyn Haylock, Adele 

Pershouse

South Team - Women
•	 Serena Bonnell, Olivia Rothwell, Pamela Rowe, Wendy Wilson
•	 Sharon Weatherby, Lynda Brownen, Candice Ayton, Julie Keegan
•	 Zayah Morgan, Liz Walton, Eileen Swanson, Emma Spicer

Men
 
1st Test	 South def North 66-42
2nd Test	South def North 64-53
3rd Test	 South def North 59-52

Test Series won by South (3 tests to 0)

 
North Team - Men
•	 Ray Kurtz, Damien McGee, Mark Armstrong, Nic Gosley
•	 Heath Hawkins, Nick Twining, Justin Cribbin, Jamie Anderson
•	 Keith Whalley, Shane Rideout, Alex Murtagh, Timothy Smith

South Team - Men
•	 Mitchell Mears, Luke Turner, Jason Grundon, Kane Nelson
•	 Tyler Pettigrew, Cody Gerick, Dean McWhinney, Nathan Rice
•	 Dean Sluce, Jack Chirgwin, Jacob Nelson, Brett Wilkie

North menNorth women

South women South men
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Providing expert advice 
to help more clubs succeed
since 1980

Learn more about how we can help
07 3224 0222  | mullinslawyers.com.au 

At Mullins, we understand the important role clubs play in the
community where vibrant and viable clubs provide many
benefits. With over 30 years' experience working alongside
small community-run organisations to large sporting clubs
with multiple venues, we offer expert advice to help clubs
succeed or to enhance their existing success.

Providing expert advice to help
more clubs succeed since 1980
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Queensland vs NSW Open Test Series
July 17-18

Held at St Johns Park, NSW

Women 
 
1st Test: NSW def QLD 72-48 

2nd Test: NSW def QLD 58-48

3rd Test: NSW def QLD 64-49

WINNER: New South Wales

Player of the Series: Candice Ayton

Representing Queensland:
•	 Candice Ayton, Pamela Rowe, Bolivia Millerick, Kelsey Cottrell

•	 Jannah Dymnycz, Noelene Dutton, Julie Keegan, Lynsey Clarke

•	 Lexie Foot, Amanda Haevecker, Wendy Wilson, Chloe Stewart

Men 
 
1st Test: NSW def QLD 59-46

2nd Test: NSW def QLD 68-41 

3rd Test: NSW def QLD 60-50

WINNER: New South Wales

Player of the Series: Aron Sherriff

Representing Queensland:
•	 Chris Rosanes, Nic Gosley, Kane Nelson Aron Sherriff

•	 Dale McWhinney-Shillington, Barrie Lester, Sean Ingham,  
Sean Baker

•	 Cohen Litfin, Matthew Lucas, Brett Wilkie, Nathan Rice

Queensland vs NSW 40-59 Test Series
July 17-8

Held at St Johns Park, NSW 

Women 
 
1st Test: NSW def QLD 47-35

2nd Test: QLD def NSW 57-21

3rd Test: NSW def QLD 57-26

WINNER: New South Wales

Player of the Series: Pauline Laverty

Representing Queensland:

•	 Denise Gilbert, Lauren Schultz, Janet Healey, Trish Cullinane

•	 Pauline Laverty, Yvonne Lovelock, Tilly Orero, Lorraine Callaghan

Men 
 
1st Test: NSW def QLD 38-31 

2nd Test: QLD def NSW 43-33 

3rd Test: QLD def NSW 41-32 

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Ben Walsh

Representing Queensland:

•	 Ben Walsh, Gary Pearson, Tim Smith, Jamie Anderson

•	 Paul Gilbert, Mark Armstrong, Glen Pitts, Adam White

40-59 Men
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Queensland vs NSW U25 Test Series
July 17-18

Held at St Johns Park, NSW

Women 
 
1st Test: QLD def NSW 45-42 

2nd Test: QLD def NSW 41-27 

3rd Test: NSW def QLD 50-38

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Corinne Stallan 
 
Representing Queensland:

•	 Bonnie Attwooll, Chloe Runge, Olivia Rothwell, Jorja Maughan

•	 Sophie Kiepe, Dekota Brindle, Holly Anderson, Corinne Stallan

Men 
 
1st Test: NSW  def QLD 46-26

2nd Test: NSW def QLD 53-24

3rd Test: QLD def NSW 44-26

WINNER: New South Wales

Player of the Series: Jayden Cottell 
 
Representing Queensland:

•	 Hayden Oster, Hayden Leslie, Isaac Maughan, Jarryd Davies

•	 Joel Downey, Jayden Cottell, John Hammond jnr, Jake Rynne

U25 Women

U25 Men
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U18 Interstate Tri Series (QLD/NSW/VIC)
August 2-4

Held at Club Tweed

U18 Girls

Round 1
Fours 	 Queensland 12 lost to Victoria 14
Fours	 Queensland 9 lost to New South Wales 11

Round 2
Pairs 	 Queensland 12 lost to Victoria 21
Pairs 	 Queensland 10 lost to Victoria 15
Pairs	 Queensland 18 def New South Wales 12
Pairs	 Queensland 11 lost to New South Wales 22

Round 3
Singles	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 17
Singles 	 Queensland 21 def New South Wales 17
Triples	 Queensland 8 lost to Victoria 25
Triples 	 Queensland 15 lost to New South Wales 17

Round 4
Fours 	 Queensland 13 def Victoria 11
Fours	 Queensland 8 lost to New South Wales 14

Round 5
Pairs 	 Queensland 16 lost to Victoria 17
Pairs 	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 11
Pairs	 Queensland 13 lost to New South Wales 21
Pairs	 Queensland 12 lost to New South Wales 17

Round 6
Singles	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 12
Singles 	 Queensland 19 lost to New South Wales 21
Triples	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 12
Triples 	 Queensland 6 lost to New South Wales 24

Player of the Series: Tilah Mason

Series Winner: New South Wales 

Representing Queensland:
Ashlin Johnson, Lacey Gerick, Lilly Vardy, Logan Hughes 
Makayla Gainsford, Mia Haylock, Phoebie Russell, Tilah Mason

U18 Boys

Round 1
Fours	 Queensland 14 lost to Victoria 16
Fours	 Queensland 9 lost to New South Wales 14

Round 2
Pairs 	 Queensland 11 lost to Victoria 29
Pairs 	 Queensland 8 lost to Victoria 20
Pairs	 Queensland 28 def New South Wales 12
Pairs	 Queensland 16 def New South Wales 14

Round 3
Singles	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 18
Singles 	 Queensland 21 def New South Wales 11
Triples	 Queensland 14 lost to Victoria 22
Triples 	 Queensland 21 def New South Wales 13

Round 4
Fours 	 Queensland 12 lost to Victoria 22
Fours	 Queensland 13 lost to New South Wales 18

Round 5
Pairs 	 Queensland 20 def Victoria 12
Pairs 	 Queensland 15 lost to Victoria 23
Pairs	 Queensland 15 lost to New South Wales 21
Pairs	 Queensland 9 lost to New South Wales 17
 
Round 6
Singles	 Queensland 21 def Victoria 4
Singles 	 Queensland 21 def New South Wales 11
Triples	 Queensland 7 lost to Victoria 28
Triples 	 Queensland 11 lost to New South Wales 31

Player of the Series: Riley Gerick

Series Winner: Victoria

Representing Queensland:
Brody Carter, Cooper Sutton, Jack Hayward, Rhys Gillman 
Riley Gerick, Thomas Brehmer, Todd Brain, Trent Brehmer
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Australian Open Sides Championships
October 17-20 
Held at Club Tweed

Women 
 
Round 1 Queensland def South Australia 74-47
Round 2 Queensland def Tasmania 57-50
Round 3 Western Australia def Queensland 63-46 
Round 4 Queensland def Victoria 57-50
Round 5 Queensland def Northern Territory 83-34
Round 6 Queensland def New South Wales 62-54
Round 7 Queensland def Australian Capital Territory 63-50

Winner: Queensland

Player of the Series: Kelsey Cottrell

Representing Queensland

•	 Candice Ayton, Pam Rowe, Bolivia Millerick, Kelsey Cottrell 
•	 Yvonne Lovelock, Janet Healey, Julie Keegan, Lynsey Clarke 
•	 Amanda Haevecker, Emma Spicer, Wendy Wilson, Chloe Stewart

Men
 
Round 1 South Australia def Queensland 56-46
Round 2 Queensland def Tasmania 69-51
Round 3 Queensland def Western Australia 75-44
Round 4 Queensland def Victoria 57-51
Round 5 Queensland def Northern Territory  75-40
Round 6 New South Wales def Queensland 78-51
Round 7 Queensland def Australian Capital Territory 76-53

Winner:  New South Wales     Runner-up: Queensland

Player of the Series: Aron Sherriff

Representing Queensland

•	 Aaron Hewson, Barrie Lester, Nathan Rice, Aron Sherriff
•	 Dale McWhinney-Shillington, Nic Gosley, Sean Ingham, Sean Baker
•	 Brendan Wilson, Jamie Anderson, Brett Wilkie, Kane Nelson

Queensland vs NT Test Series 
October 16-17

Held at Club Tweed

Women 
 
1st Test: QLD def NT 92-31

2nd Test: QLD def NT 72-31

3rd Test: QLD def NT 83-34 (3rd round during the Australian Sides)

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Lynsey Clarke

Representing Queensland:

•	 Candice Ayton, Pamela Rowe, Bolivia Millerick, Kelsey Cottrell

•	 Yvonne Lovelock, Janet Healey, Julie Keegan, Lynsey Clarke

•	 Amanda Haevecker, Emma Spicer, Wendy Wilson, Chloe Stewart

Men 
 
1st Test: QLD def NT 87-31

2nd Test: QLD def NT 85-40 

3rd Test: QLD  def NT 75-40 (3rd round during the Australian Sides)

WINNER: Queensland

Player of the Series: Brett Wilkie

Representing Queensland:

•	 Aaron Hewson, Barrie Lester, Nathan Rice, Aron Sherriff

•	 Dale McWhinney-Shillington, Nic Gosley, Sean Ingham, Sean Baker

•	 Brendan Wilson, Jamie Anderson, Brett Wilkie, Kane Nelson

QLD women QLD men
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Australian Senior Sides Championships
October 12-15

Held at Club Tweed
 
Women 
 
Round 1 Queensland 66 def Tasmania 57
Round 2 Queensland 49 lost to Victoria 62
Round 3 Queensland 67 def Western Australia 47
Round 4 Queensland 79 def Australian Capital Territory 36
Round 5 Queensland 75 def Northern Territory 33
Round 6 Queensland 72 def South Australia 46
Round 7 Queensland 53 lost to New South Wales 66

Winner: Victoria	 Runner-Up: Queensland 
Player of the Series: Adele Pershouse

Representing Queensland
•	 Brenda Thompson, Gail Crompton, Karen Goldsworthy, Maria 

Rigby
•	 Adele Pershouse, Terry McAlary, Dealia Walsh, Noelene Dutton
•	 Cheryl Heaps, Heather Hodgson, Sue Brady, Julie Keegan 

Men
 
Round 1 Queensland 73 def Tasmania 33
Round 2 Queensland 52 def Victoria 50
Round 3 Queensland 67 def Western Australia 49
Round 4 Queensland 79 def Australian Capital Territory 39
Round 5 Queensland 75 def Northern Territory 34
Round 6 Queensland 48 lost to South Australia 55
Round 7 Queensland 57 lost to New South Wales 75

Winner: South Australia 	 Third: Queensland 
Player of the Series: Greg Rolls

Representing Queensland
•	 Max Jaffray, Peter Richards, Neville Jenkins, Scott Franklin
•	 Keith Whalley, Jim Wise, Alan Howard, Greg Rolls
•	 Bill Cornehls, Ray Kurtz, Scott Chamberlain, John Finlayson

Queensland Para Team

QLD Senior Sides Women

Australian Para Championships
October 9-12

Held at Broadbeach Bowls Club

Men’s Singles – B5/6
Bronze – Brett Sellars

Men’s Singles – B7/8
Gold – Damien Delgado

Men’s 14 Point Pairs
Bronze – Brett Sellars & Tony Bonnell

Men’s Open Pairs
Bronze – Welsey Brown & Clive 
Williams

Women’s B7/8 Singles
Gold – Serena Bonnell
Silver – Cheryl Lindfield

Women’s Open Pairs
Gold – Louise Hoskins & Serena 
Bonnell
Bronze – Annette Goldsworthy & 
Cheryl Lindfield

Overall winner: Queensland
Players of the Series: Serena Bonnell and Tony Bonnell

Representing Queensland
•	 Men B5/6 – Tony Bonnell, Brett Sellars
•	 Men B7/8 – Cooper Whitestyles, Clive Williams, Wesley Brown, Damien Delgado
•	 Women B7/8 – Serena Bonnell, Cheryl Lindfield, Louise Hoskins, Annette Goldsworthy

Team Managers/Coach – Alan Thorp, Dennis O’Toole, Jacqui Hineman
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Australian Under 18 
Championships 
October 9-10

Held at Club Tweed

U18 Girls 

Singles: 

Round 1 	Queensland 21 def New South Wales “B” 7
Round 2 	Queensland 21 def NSW/QLD 9
Round 3	Queensland 21 def South Australia 1
Final:	 Queensland 14 lost to Victoria 21
Place: 	 Silver – Lilly Vardy

Pairs: 
Round 1 	Queensland 25 def New South Wales “B” 10
Round 2 	Queensland 14 lost to NSW/QLD 18
Round 3 	Queensland 11 lost to South Australia 18
Place	 no playoffs

Triples: 
Round 1 	Queensland 14 def New South Wales “B” 10
Round 2 	Queensland 16 def NSW/QLD 13
Round 3 	Queensland 15 lost to South Australia 26
Final 	 Queensland 16 def Victoria 12
Place: 	 Bronze – Phoebie Russell, Ashlin Johnson, Tilah Mason

Fours: 
Round 1 	Queensland 11 lost to New South Wales “B” 17
Round 2 	Queensland 10 lost to NSW/QLD 25
Round 3 	Queensland 12 def South Australia 11
Place	 no playoffs

Player of the Series: Lilly Vardy

Girls’ champions: New South Wales 

Representing Queensland:
Ashlin Johnson, Lacey Gerick, Lilly Vardy, Phoebie Russell, Tilah Mason

OVERALL CHAMPION STATE – NEW SOUTH WALES (Boys & Girls)

U18 Queensland Team

U18 Boys 
 
Singles:

Round 1 	Queensland 21 def Australia Capital Territory 13
Round 2 	Queensland 21 def NSW/QLD 19
Round 3	Queensland 17 lost to South Australia 21
Final	 Queensland 16 lost to Victoria 21
Place: 	 Fourth – Riley Gerick

Pairs: 
Round 1 	Queensland 20 lost to Australia Capital Territory 13
Round 2 	Queensland 16 lost to NSW/QLD 14
Round 3 	Queensland 10 lost to South Australia 23
Final 	 Queensland 17 def New South Wales 12
Place	 Bronze – Rhys Gillman & Riley Gerick 

Triples: 
Round 1 	Queensland 21 def Australia Capital Territory 8
Round 2 	Queensland 18 def NSW/QLD 13
Round 3 	Queensland 15 lost to South Australia 16
Final	 Queensland 11 lost to New South Wales 18
Place	 Silver – Brody Carter, Todd Brain & Trent Brehmer

Fours: 
Round 1 	Queensland 24 def Australia Capital Territory 8
Round 2 	Queensland 12 def NSW/QLD 11
Round 3 	Queensland 13 draw South Australia 13
Final	 Queensland 12 def Tasmania 9
Place: 	 Gold – Rhys Gillman, Brody Carter, Riley Gerick & Trent 
Brehmer

Player of the series: Trent Brehmer

Boys’ champions: Queensland

Representing Queensland:
Brody Carter, Rhys Gillman, Riley Gerick, Todd Brain, Trent Brehmer 
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Financials

Certified

CONSULTATION
Saving clubs

thousands of $$$
with expert
consultation

before digging
dirt to get it

done right the
first time!

CONSTRUCTION
Experts in

volatile soils and
World Class base

construction
ensuring your
level surface

lasts the test of
time.

SERVICING
We offer follow
up servicing to

ensure your  
new green stays
in mint condition
preventing algae

and wear and
tear issues. 

WHY CHOOSE US?
Experience the award-winning expertise of Bioscapes
Group. With Bioscapes, you can trust in unparalleled
service, crystal-clear communication, and a seamless
design and build process. Our Director, an industry
expert, personally oversees the initial consultations
to guarantee optimal soil preparation—ensuring
precision in heights and levels that sidestep
expensive common errors. Partner with us and
elevate your club's facilities to the pinnacle of
excellence.

www.bioscapesgroup.com.au 1300 4 246 246

Proudly Partnering With

http://www.bioscapesgroup.com.au
https://bioscapesgroup.com.au/
https://bioscapesgroup.com.au/


Membership
Brisbane District: 17 Clubs, 1337 Members Female Male Total
Banyo Bowls Club 9 50 59

Chermside Bowls Club 49 86 135

Enoggera Bowls, Sports And Community Club 7 56 63

Everton Park Bowls Club 22 56 78

Ferny Grove Bowls Club 25 70 95

Gaythorne Bowls Club 4 43 47

Geebung Bowls Club 7 40 47

Hamilton Bowls Club 8 60 68

Merthyr Bowls Club 8 26 34

New Farm Bowls Club 28 88 116

Northern Suburbs Bowls Club 40 102 142

Red Hill Bowls, Sports & Community Club 15 73 88

Samford District Bowls Club 27 38 65

St Lucia Bowls Club 32 50 82

Toombul Bowls Club 32 56 88

West Toowong Bowls Club 11 38 49

Windsor Bowls Club 29 52 81

Totals 353 984 1337

Bundaberg District: 10 Clubs, 1166 Members Female Male Total
Bargara Bowls Club 102 189 291

Brothers Bundaberg Bowls Club 22 26 48

Bundaberg Bowls Club 33 67 100

Burnett Bowls Club 49 113 162

Elliott Heads Bowls Club 41 42 83

Gin Gin Bowls Club 27 37 64

Isis Central Mill Bowls Club 3 8 11

Moore Park Beach Bowls Club 29 53 82

The Waves Bowls Club Bundaberg 67 121 188

Woodgate Bowls Club 43 71 114

Totals 416 727 1143
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Central Qld District: 9 Clubs, 661 Members Female Male Total
Diggers Memorial Bowls Club 9 97 106

Emu Park Bowls Club 26 36 62

Gracemere Bowls Club 25 31 56

Mount Morgan Welfare Bowls Club 8 8 16

Moura Bowls Club 12 14 26

Rockhampton Bowls Club 51 84 135

Victoria Park Bowls Club 32 48 80

Wowan Bowls Club 6 6 12

Yeppoon Bowls Club 64 104 168

Totals 233 428 661

Condamine District: 9 Clubs, 401 Members Female Male Total
Chinchilla Bowls Club 16 47 63

Dalby Bowls Club 14 37 51

Jandowae Bowls Club 17 35 52

Meandarra Bowls Club 7 16 23

Miles Bowls Club 12 27 39

North Dalby Bowls Club 28 46 74

Tara Bowls Club 8 26 34

Taroom Bowls Club 18 30 48

Wandoan Bowls Club 10 7 17

Totals 130 271 401

Kilkivan Bowls Club 10 26 36

Kingaroy Bowls Club 10 26 36

Mundubbera Bowls Club 10 4 14

Murgon Bowls Club Inc. 11 26 37

Nanango Bowls Club 8 26 34

Proston Bowls Club 4 8 12

Tansey Bowls Club 5 15 20

Wondai Country Club 15 25 40

Yarraman Bowls Club 13 26 39

Totals 120 258 378

Burnett District: 15 Clubs, 378 Members Female Male Total
Biggenden Bowls Club 6 13 19

Binjour Bowls Club 15 23 38

Durong Bowls Club 2 6 8

Eidsvold Bowls Club 1 5 6

Gayndah Bowls Club 6 22 28

Goomeri Bowls Club 4 7 11
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Cunningham District: 20 Clubs, 1369 Members Female Male Total
Algester Bowls Club 64 138 202

Corinda Bowls Club 33 33 66

Darra Cementco Bowls Club 17 55 72

Durack Inala Bowls Club 9 37 46

Esk Bowls Club 3 5 8

Goodna Bowls Club 9 19 28

Graceville Bowls Club 43 80 123

Downs District: 13 Clubs, 1062 Members Female Male Total
Crows Nest Bowls Club 16 60 76

Drayton Bowls Club 56 101 157

Gatton Bowls Club 6 24 30

Laidley Bowls Club 18 44 62

Millmerran Memorial Bowls Club 26 51 77

North Toowoomba Bowls Club 32 103 135

Oakey Bowls Club 17 42 59

Peranga & District Bowls Club 8 39 47

Pittsworth Bowls Club 10 45 55

South Toowoomba Bowls Club 24 72 96

Toowoomba Bowls Club 40 67 107

Toowoomba City Bowls Club 25 69 94

West Toowoomba Bowls Club 22 45 67

Totals 300 762 1062

Ipswich Bowls Club 55 80 135

Jindalee Bowls Club 37 99 136

Lowood And District Memorial Bowls Club 20 41 61

Mount Crosby Bowls Club 1 11 12

North Ipswich Bowls Club 19 69 88

Rathdowney Memorial Bowls Club 11 21 32

Rosewood Bowls Club 8 33 41

Salisbury Bowls Club 41 62 103

Tarragindi Bowls Club 26 26

Toogoolawah Bowls Club 7 13 20

United Bowls Club 41 64 105

Wellers Hill Bowls Club 8 41 49

Yeronga Bowls Club 4 12 16

Totals 430 939 1369
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Gateway District: 17 Clubs, 2170 Members Female Male Total
Belmont Services Bowls Club 69 94 163

Bulimba Bowls Club 4 30 34

Camp Hill Bowls Club 5 42 47

Capalaba Sports Club 78 193 271

Carina Bowls Club 7 64 71

Cleveland Bowls Club 92 179 271

Coorparoo Bowls Club 20 52 72

Holland Park Sports And Community Club 10 29 39

Logan City Rec & Sporting Club 55 135 190

Macleay Island Bowls Club 15 51 66

Manly Bowls Club 72 141 213

Mt Gravatt Bowls Club 67 132 199

Point Lookout Bowls Club 12 23 35

Russell Island Bowls Club 13 33 46

Victoria Point Bowls And Recreation Club 55 144 199

Wellington Point Bowls Club 60 109 169

Wynnum Bowls Club 18 67 85

Totals 652 1518 2170

Hervey Bay Bowls Club 82 161 243

Kandanga Country Club 12 24 36

Kenilworth Bowls Club 13 30 43

Maryborough Bowls Club 34 76 110

Maryborough Services Memorial Bowls Club 10 43 53

Pialba Bowls Club 39 122 161

Pomona Bowls Club 22 29 51

Rainbow Beach Bowls Club 1 4 5

The Albert Bowls Club 31 53 84

Tin Can Bay Bowls Club 36 62 98

Urangan Bowls Club 105 197 302

Totals 541 1044 1585

Fraser Coast District: 17 Clubs, 1585 Members Female Male Total
Boonooroo-Sandy Straits Bowls Club 18 21 39

Burgowan Ladies Bowls Club 27 27

Burgowan Mens Bowls Club 47 47

Burrum Heads Bowls Club 33 68 101

Cooloola Coast Bowls Club 29 31 60

Doon Villa Bowls Club 27 47 74

Gympie Bowls Club 22 29 51
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Gold Coast Tweed District: 21 Clubs,  
3987 Members

Female Male Total

Beaudesert Bowls Club 42 71 113

Beenleigh Bowls Club 76 159 235

Benowa Bowls Club 6 36 42

Broadbeach Bowls Club 71 167 238

Burleigh Heads Bowls Club 71 235 306

Canungra Bowls Club 20 31 51

Club Helensvale 161 301 462

Club Mermaid 33 76 109

Club Mudgeeraba 35 72 107

Club Robina 63 137 200

Club Tweed 168 284 452

Coolangatta Bowls Club 57 138 195

Gold Coast Lawn Bowls Club 9 45 54

Musgrave Hill Bowls Club 111 247 358

Nerang Community Bowls Club 30 75 105

Paradise Point Bowls Club 159 345 504

Southport Bowls Club 46 106 152

Tamborine Mountain Bowls Club 8 26 34

Tugun Bowls Club 67 165 232

Twin Towns Services Ladies Bowling Club 14 14

Woongoolba Bowls Club 1 23 24

Totals 1248 2739 3987
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Seaforth Bowls Club 14 30 44

Souths Suburban Bowls Club 50 72 122

St Helens Bowls Club 17 22 39

Wests Tigers Bowls Club 21 61 82

Totals 398 813 1211

Maranoa/Warrego District: 7 Clubs, 294 Members Female Male Total
Charleville Bowls Club 6 22 28

Cunnamulla Bowls Club 17 34 51

Injune Bowls Club 6 16 22

Mitchell Bowls Club 17 33 50

Quilpie Bowls Club 12 14 26

Roma Bowls Club 29 55 84

Surat Bowls Club 14 19 33

Totals 101 193 294

Mackay District: 15 Clubs, 1211 Members Female Male Total
Airlie Beach Bowls Club 33 46 79

Club Northern Beaches Mackay 33 134 167

Mackay Bowling Club 20 52 72

Mackay City Bowls Club 54 64 118

Mackay RSL Memorial Bowls Club 1 30 31

Marian Bowls Club 31 31 62

Moranbah Bowls Club 1 26 27

North Mackay Bowls Club 79 105 184

Pioneer Valley Bowls Club 7 26 33

Proserpine Bowls Club Inc 4 34 38

Sarina Bowls Club 33 80 113

Leichhardt District: 6 Clubs, 190 Members Female Male Total
Aramac Bowls Club 3 12 15

Blackall Bowls Club 3 10 13

Blair Athol Clermont Bowls Club 4 18 22

Dysart Bowls Club 5 11 16

Emerald Bowls Club 16 52 68

Longreach Bowls Club 6 50 56

Totals 37 153 190
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Moreton Bay District: 14 Clubs, 2739 Members Female Male Total
Aspley Memorial Bowls Club Inc 67 151 218

Bongaree Bowls Club 96 144 240

Bramble Bay Bowls Club 62 101 163

Bribie Island Bowls Club 134 293 427

Brighton Bowls Club 12 69 81

Caboolture Lakes Bowls Club 20 50 70

Dayboro Bowls Club 33 64 97

Kallangur Memorial Bowls Club 47 94 141

Kilcoy Bowls Club 19 26 45

Narangba Bowls Club 30 69 99

Pine Rivers Memorial Bowls Club 157 381 538

Scarborough Bowls Club 67 183 250

Solander Lake Bowls Club 85 198 283

Woodford Bowls Club 18 69 87

Totals 847 1892 2739

North Qld District: 19 Clubs, 1036 Members Female Male Total
Alligator Creek Bowls Club 5 7 12

Ayr Bowls Club 27 32 59

Bowen Bowls Club Inc. 9 22 31

Brandon Bowls Club 14 33 47

Collinsville Bowling Club Inc 19 19

Cutheringa Bowls Club 3 45 48

Giru Bowls Club 7 14 21

Gold City Bowls Club 12 23 35

Home Hill Bowls Club 5 19 24

Hughenden Bowls Club 3 14 17

Ingham Bowls Club 30 57 87

Jubilee Bowls Club 34 72 106

Macknade Community Sporting Club 12 18 30

Magnetic Island Bowls Club Inc. 13 30 43

Noorla Bowls Club 12 35 47

South Townsville Bowls Club 30 79 109

Suburban Bowls Club 43 57 100

Thuringowa City Bowls Club 53 111 164

Wangaratta Bowls Club 20 17 37

Totals 332 704 1036

North West Qld District: 3 Clubs, 51 Members Female Male Total
Cloncurry Bowls Club 18 18

Leichhardt Services Bowls Club 3 15 18

Mount Isa Bowls Club 1 14 15

Totals 4 47 51
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Tenterfield Bowls Club 11 22 33

Texas And District Memorial Bowls Club 15 53 68

The Summit Bowls Club 9 44 53

Warwick Bowls Club 16 32 48

Warwick East Bowls Club 12 26 38

Totals 120 323 443

Sunshine Coast District: 18 Clubs, 2974 Members Female Male Total
Buderim Bowls Club 85 183 268

Club Kawana 104 186 290

Club Maroochy 107 280 387

Coolum Beach Bowls Club 67 155 222

Cooroy Community Bowls Club 6 17 23

Glasshouse Country Bowls Club 31 71 102

Headland Pacific Sports Club 35 39 74

Maleny Bowls Club 11 27 38

Mapleton Bowls Club 105 62 167

Mooloolaba Bowls Club 84 176 260

Nambour Bowls Club 34 43 77

Nambour Heights Bowls Club 18 56 74

Palmwoods Bowls Club 19 43 62

Pelican Waters Bowls Club 131 232 363

Tewantin Noosa Bowls Club 54 141 195

The Waves Bowls Club Caloundra 74 153 227

Woombye Bowls Club 23 61 84

Yandina Bowls Club 12 49 61

Totals 1000 1974 2974

Southern Downs District: 11 Clubs, 443 Members Female Male Total
Clifton Bowls Club 27 55 82

Goondiwindi Bowls Club 9 31 40

Inglewood Bowls Club 7 18 25

Southern Cross Bowls Club 5 23 28

Stanthorpe Bowls Club 7 13 20

Tannymorel Bowls Club 2 6 8

Port Curtis District: 9 Clubs, 375 Members Female Male Total
1770 Bowls Club 5 14 19

Biloela Bowls Club 8 34 42

Boyne Tannum Ladies Bowling Club 30 30

Boyne Tannum Mens Bowls Club 2 79 81

Calliope Central Bowls Club 17 38 55

Gladstone Bowls Club 17 23 40

Miriam Vale Bowls Club 6 7 13

Monto Bowls Club 10 28 38

Mount Larcom Bowls Club 7 8 15

Yaralla Bowls Club 11 31 42

Totals 113 262 375
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Tropical Far North QLD District: 22 Clubs,  
1085 Members

Female Male Total

Atherton Bowls Club 32 52 84

Babinda Bowls Club 15 15

Brothers Edmonton Bowls Club 32 42 74

Cooktown Bowls Club 17 21 38

Dimbulah Bowls Club 1 6 7

Edge Hill Cairns Bowls Club 26 76 102

Gordonvale Bowls Club 16 31 47

Herberton Memorial Bowls Club 2 3 5

Innisfail Bowls Club 24 46 70

Malanda Bowls Club 1 1

Mareeba Bowls Club Inc. 24 24 48

Marlin Coast Bowls Club 43 88 131

Mossman Memorial Bowls Club 45 63 108

Ravenshoe Memorial Bowls Club 8 15 23

Silkwood Bowls Club Inc 9 12 21

South Johnstone Bowls Club 9 25 34

Stratford Bowls Club 3 20 23

Thursday Island Bowls Club 6 6 12

Tully Bowls Club 15 10 25

Weipa Bowls Club 20 41 61

West Cairns Bowls Club 18 91 109

Yungaburra Bowls Club Inc 16 31 47

Totals 367 718 1085

Totals:  Clubs 272 7742 16749 24491
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Proudly sponsored by

https://bioscapesgroup.com.au/
https://www.jcarrollclubpromotions.com.au/
https://www.mullinslawyers.com.au/
https://bcib.com.au/
https://www.aceit.com.au/collections/bowls
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